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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited (the “Company”} which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Going Concern

See Note 40 to the financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The financial statements of the Company have | Our audit procedures included:
been prepared on a going concern basis.

* Enquired with the management and those
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

The Company has incurred a net loss of INR
211.74 million during the year ended 31 March
2023. As at 31 March 2023, the Company's
current liabilities exceed its current assets by
INR 261.07 million. Further, the Company has
contractual cash outflows of INR 466.13
million (excluding future contractual
interest payments) due within 12 months of
the balance sheet date.

The Company has prepared budgets / cash
flow forecasts, which involves judgement and
estimation around the sources of funds to meet
the financial obligations and cash flow
requirements.

Based on the projected future cash flows, the
Company expects to meet its future cash flow
requirements from:

* Expected increase in cash flow from
operations.

*  Availability of unrestricted cash and bank
balances and undrawn credit facilities.

* Financial and operational support by
SAMHI Hotels Limited (Holding Company).

In view of the above, the management and the
Board of Directors believe that the Company
will be able to meet all its contractual
obligations and liabilities as and when they fall
due in near future.

Considering the subjectivity involved in the
assessment performed by the management
and board of directors of the Company, we
have identified the assessment of going
concern assumption as a key audit matter.

charged with governance regarding the
Company's ability to meet their obiligations for
the next 12 months.

*  Assessed the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the cash flow forecasts for
the next 12 months.

* Compared the forecasted statement of profit and
loss and cash flows with the Company's
business plans approved by the board of
directors of the Holding Company.

* Evaluated the reasonableness of the
assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts
which includes occupancy rate, average room
rate etc. To consider forecasting risk we also
performed sensitivity analysis over these
assumptions.

*  Assessed the reliability of cash flow forecasts
through a retrospective review of actual
performance in comparison to budgets.

* Assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements relating to uncertainties and
mitigation thereof.

Impairment assessment of Property, Plant

and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets

See Note 45 to the financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying value of
Property Plant and Equipment and Other
Intangible Assets amounts to INR 2,969.24

Our audit procedures included:

* QObtained an understanding of the Company’s
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

million.

The Company pericdically assesses whether
there is any indication that such Property Plant
and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets at
cash generating unit (CGU) level may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of
these assets and if the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount.
That reduction is recorded as impairment loss.

To assess the recoverability of the CGU,
management is required fo make significant
estimates and assumptions related to forecast
of future revenue, operating margins, exit
multiple and selection of the discount rates.
The Company used the discounted cash flow
approach to determine the recoverable value of
the CGU. These assumptions are of particular
importance due to the extent of judgment
involved, thus changes in these assumptions
could have a significant impact on the
recoverable value of the CGU.

Considering the inherent uncertainty,
complexity and  judgement involved,
impairment assessment of the above-
mentioned assets has been considered as a
key audit matter.

process for projécting the future cash flows for
determining the recoverable amount of CGU.

Tested the appropriateness of management's
basis to identify relevant CGUs for which
impairment testing is performed.

Tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key controls over the
impairment assessment process.

Evaluated the key market related assumptions
such as discount rate, and exit multiple.

Assessed the reliability of cash flow forecasts
through a retrospective review of actual
performance in comparison to budgets.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts
which includes occupancy rate, average room
rate. To consider forecasting risk we also
performed sensitivity analysis over these
assumptions.

Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures
made in the financial statements.

Revenue recognition

See Note 2.11 to the financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company is principally engaged as a hote!
owner. It's revenue comprises hotel revenue
(including room revenue, food and beverage
revenue and recreation and other services
revenue}. ,

The accounting policies for different revenue
streams are set out in Note 2.11 to the financial
statements.

Revenue is a key performance indicator of the
Company and thers is risk of overstatement of
revenue due to fraud resulting from pressure to

Our audit procedures included:

Tested the Company's revenue recognition
accounting policies and its compliance with the
relevant accounting standard.

Tested design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key controls of the revenue
recognition process.

Performed substantive testing (including year-
end cut off testing) by selecting samples of
revenue transactions recorded during the year.
For such samples, verified the underlying
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

achieve targsts and eamings expectations. documents such as invoices, receipts etc.

* Tested the adequacy of disclosures relating te
the revenue recognition in the financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not
include the financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safequarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstaterent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually orin the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to Q\J
~
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independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

fraud or emor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidencs that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatemment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting frem error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 1o design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, fo modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staterents, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
ocfeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
shouid not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and cbtained all the information and explanations which ta the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those bocks, except that the back-up of certain
softwares/ applications which form part of the 'books of account and other relevant books and
papers in electronic mode’ has not been kept on the servers physically located in India.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

The matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph in "Annexure B with respect
to adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 18 April 2023 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appeinted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B". ;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 43(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or an behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 43(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Ruie 11(e}, as provided under (i) and {ji) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

C. With respect to the matier to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon

by us.
ForBSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountanis
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

P_o L\UJ Nﬁt;o»t/

Rahul Nayar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAI UDIN:23508605BGZYI1G3050

Page 7 of 156



BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i} (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b)

(©

(@

(&)

(i) (a)

(b)

(i)

()

)

(vi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company. However, original title deeds are under lien
with banks for the loan facilities availed by the Company. Therefore, we could not verify those
title deeds and have not received independent confirmation from banks.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or Intangible Assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification befween the
physical stocks and the book recerds that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class

of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupess, in aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets.
As informed to us and as per the terms of sanction letter of such limits, there is no requirement
on the Company to submit quarterly returns or statements with such bank.

According fo the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinatton
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3{ii)(a) to 3(iii){f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
rendered by the company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise and Sales tax

{vii) {(a)
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax ('GST'}, Value
Added Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there
have been slight delays in a few cases of Goods and Service Tax ('GST"), Provident Fund,
Employees State insurance, income-Tax and Professional Tax.

As explained to us, the Company did nct have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax ('GST'), Value Added Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess
or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Due date Date of
statute the dues {Rs.in which the payment
Millions) amount
relates
The Provident 0.34 | March 2019 15 April 2019 | Not yet paid
Employees’ Fund
Provident
Fund and
Miscellaneous
Provisigns
Act, 1952

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax (GST'), Value
Added Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

(b}

Name of Nature of Amount (Rs. | Paid under | Period to Forum
the statute the dues in Millions) | protest (Rs. | which the where
in Millions) amount dispute is
relates pending

Income Tax | Unexplained 9.17 4.50 | FY 2015-16 | Commission
Act, 1961 sundry er of Income

creditors and Tax

interest  on {Appeals)

delay in

deposit  of

statutory
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financlal Statements
of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Continued}
Name of Nature of Amount (Rs. | Paid under | Period to Forum
the statute the dues in Millions) | protest {Rs. | which the where
in Millions) amount dispute is
relates pending
dues
Income Tax | Unexplained 2.46 0.49 | FY 2016-17 | Commission
Act, 1961 expenditure er of Income
under section Tax
69C (Appeals)
Income Tax | Unexplained 11.36 FY 2017-18 | Commission
Act, 1961 expenditure er of Income
under section Tax
69C (Appeals)

(viii)

() (a)

®)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

() (a)

{b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. As at 31 March 2023, the
Company also has interest free loan of Rs. 2,496.94 millions from the holding company,
repayable at the option of the Company and accordingly classified as "Other equity". As this
loan is repayable at the option of the Company, there has been no default in repayment thereof.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained, other
than Rs. 16.47 millions which remain unutilised as at 31 March 2023. The Company
has temporarily parked such unutilised balance in cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March
2023.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hotd any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(bd(e) is not
applicable.
The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix){f) is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3{x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Continued)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(i}

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(b}

{ov}

{xvi) (a)

(b}

(©

(d)

{xvii)

(xviii)

{xix)

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given te us, ne report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its

business.

‘We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period

under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required fo be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not apglicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3{xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 102.42 miillions in the current financial year and
Rs. 238.68 millions in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

We draw attention to Note 40 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31 March
2023. Further, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets as at 31 March 2023

by Rs. 261.07 millions.

Further, it explains the management's assessment of going concern assumption and its
Page 11 of 15




BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

assertion that based on best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going
concem i.e. continue its operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its
assets, for the foreseeable future.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowiedge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantes nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of cne year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

{xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Charlered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

[Zcxlawl N&T%

Rahul Nayar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAI UDIN:23508605BGZYIG3050
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)}(h} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of CASPIA Hotels
Private Limited ("the Company”} as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, maintained adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note") and
except for the possible effects of the material weakness described in “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section
of our report below, on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as of 31 March 2023,

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported below in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of 31 March 2023 financial statements of the Company,
and this material weakness do not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness have been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls with
reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2023:

the Uompany's infernal tinancial controls with reference to financial statements in respect of General
Information Technology Controls (GITCs) and automated Information Technology (IT) Application
Controls over the Company's Opera Application software were not operating effectively as at 31 March
2023. This could potentially result in understatement / overstatement of revenue from operations.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with
reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Interpal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, fo the extent applicable to

Page 13 of 15
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued) -

an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Cuidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonabie assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of CASPIA Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accounlants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

E‘]L\LJ Nuﬁm/

Rahul Nayar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAI UDIN:23508605BGZYIG3050
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CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS2MH2005PTC155010

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2013

(AH amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

The nates fram Note | 1o Note 46 fonm an integral part of these financial stalements.

As per our report of even date attached

Ag at As at
Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 296347 3,055.01
Other intangible assets 4 577 824
Financial assets
Other financial assets 5 60.47 1089
Other tax assets {net) 6 2861 2523
Ovher non-current assets £ 41,28 40.91
Total non-current assels 3.099.60 3,140,28
Current assets
Inventories 9 206 1L&7
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 2145 2697
Cash and cash equivalants I1 94.27 406.08
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 12 - 2333
Other financial assers 13 1.94 672
Oither current assets 14 45,68 57.39
Total current agsets 225.40 522,36
TOTAL ASSETS 3,325.00 3,662.64
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 180,00 130,00
Other equity 13 288 .66 500.40
Total equity 468.66 680,40
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borowings 17 2,364.63 2.562.89
Trade payables 172
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and - -
~ total utstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises and small enterprises 3.38 41,23
Provisions 18 .86 2.07
Total non- current liabilities 1,369.87 2,606,19
Curren Babilhiey
Financial lisbilities
Borcowings 4] 28136 21594
Trade payables 20
. - lotal outslanding dues of micro enterprises and smat) enterprises; and 494 1.37
f - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 161.20 117.10
Other financial liabilities 21 18.63 14.68
Other current hiabilities 22 1843 2574
Provisions 23 1.91 1.22
Total current liabilities 486.47 376.05
Total liabilities 2,856.34 2,982.24
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIARILITIES 3,325.00 3,662.64

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Firm Registration Mo - 10 1248W/W- 100022

hu! dem,

Rahul Nayar
FParner
Membership Ho.: 508605

and on behalf of Board of Directors of
A Hglcls Private Limited

phig

ajat M Hima Goel
dircelor Company Secretary
DIN: 06813081 Membership No.: A40638

Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram Place; Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023

Place: Gurugram
Daate: 17 Aupngt 2023 Date: |7 August 2023

Date: 17 Avgust 2023



CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

CiIN U55209MH2005PTC155010

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise siated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 24 749.63 458.34
Other incotmne 25 15.19 1.30
Total income 764.82 459.64
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 26 71.60 50.70
Employee benefits expense 27 128.54 96.67
Other expenses 30 387.76 267.38
537.90 414.75
Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax 176.92 44.89
Finance costs 28 286.12 283.57
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 102.31 105.38
388.43 388.95
Loss before tax 211.51) (344.06)
Tax expense 7 - -
Lass for the year {21L.51) (344.06)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or foss
- Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligations 27 (0.23) .07
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (0.23) 0.07
Taotal comprehensive loss for the year {211.74) (343.99)
Earnings/(loss) per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each): 31
Basic (INR} (11.75) (19.11)
Diluted (INR) (11.75) (19.11}
The notes from Note 1 to Note 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR& Co, LLP Fru_and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis {otels Private Limited
ICAl Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 /
P,a hod Ncui.u g ng,
Rahul Nayar -—%F chra Hima Goel
Partner irector Company Secretary
Membership No.: 508605 DIN: 03563467 DIN: 06813081 Membership No.: A40688
Place: Gurugram Place; Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 17 August 2023 Date: 17 August 2023 Date: 17 August 2023

Date: 17 August 2023
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CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5209MH2H5PTC155010

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

A.  Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Loss allowance for trade receivables
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange fluctvation (net)
Interest income
Gain on modification of financtal liabilities
Government grant written off
Operating profit before movement in assets and liabilities
{Increase} in inventories
(Inerease) in trade receivables
Decrease / {(increase) in other financial assets
Decresse / {increase) in other assets
Increase in trade payables
(Decrease) / increase in other liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
Increase / {decrease) in other financial liabilities
Cash generated by operating activities
Income taxes paid (net)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
Proceeds from maturity of bank deposits
Bank deposits made
[nterest received
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-camrent bomowings
Repayment of equity component of interest free loans from Holding Company
Proceeds fram cument harrawines fnef of repayment)
Finance costs paid
Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

i. Compenenis of Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks
- in cumrent accounts
- in deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)

Cash on hand

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
21131 {344.06)
102.3t 105.38
286.12 283.57
4.61 0.54
6,78 292
(6.47) (097)
(8,55} -
- 0.08
173,29 4746
(0.19) {0.38)
{59.09) (4.08)
1.64 327
11.76 (10.71}
5.91 39.05
(7.28) 4.58
025 (0.15)
1.72 (0.12)
128,02 72.38
(3.37) (3.40)
124.65 68.98
{7.01) {1.80)
623,67 394,72
(646.43) (414.10)
611 .66
{23.66) (17.52)
68.50 40420
(219.72) {104.34)
- (35.00)
1A R?
(278.40) (291.23)
(412.80) (26.87)
(311.81) 24.59
406,08 38149
94.27 406.08
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
92,43 300,97
1.58 104.75
0.26 .36
94.27 406,08




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55209MH2005PTC155010

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Rupees miffions, unless otherwise siafed)

ii. Movement in financial liabilities - Borrowings including accrued interest

For the year ended For the vear ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance 2,785.16 2,490.30
Changes from financing cash flows
Froceeds from non-current borrowings 63.50 404.20
Repayment of non-current borrowings (219.72) {10484}
Proceeds from current borrowings (net of repayment) 16.82 -
Finance costs paid (273.40) (291.23)
Other non cash changes
Finance cost expense 280.4% 283.56
Interest income on loan funds - 317
Closing Balance 2,652.85 2,785.16

iii. The Cash Flows from operating activities section of Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the 'Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS 7
"Statement of Cash Flows".

The notes from Note 1 to Note 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co.LLP I'gr and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Churiered dccountants 1A, Hotels Private Limited
ICAT Firm Registration No.; 101248W/W-100022

Pahu Nmtm,

Rahul Nayar Das Hima Goel

Partmer dor Company Secretary
Membership No.: 508605 DIN: (3563467 DIN: 86813081 Membership No.: A40688
Place: Gurugram Place; Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 17 August 2023 Date: 17 August 2023 Date: 17 August 2023 Date: 17 Auguse 2023



CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate information

CASPIA Hotels Private Limited (‘the Company®) is a company domiciled in India. The Company was
incorporated in India on 22 July 2005 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act and is limited by

shares.

The Company is a privately held hotel development and investment company with focus on operating
internationally branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent,

Presently, the Company has three hotels under it (Renaissance, Ahmedabad; Fairfield by Mamiott,
Coimbatore and Four Points by Sheraton, Vizag) which are operational.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A, Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 17 August
2023.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency, All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement Basis

Financial assets and liabilities i.e., Fair Value
derivative instrumenis

Also refer note 40 for going concern basis of accounting used by the management.
D, Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
Jjudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty
about the assumptions and cstimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to
the camrying value of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods

affected.




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

The following are the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements:

i) Provisions and contingencies
The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

ity Useful lives, recoverable amounts and impairment of property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets
The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets are based on cstimates and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook,
expected future cash flows, obsolescence, demand, competition, known technological advances. The
Company reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets at the end of each reporting date.

iii} Employee benefit obligations
Employee benefit obligations {gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each

reporting date.

iv) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices
in active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment
is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments. Also, refer note 36 for further disclosures.

v} Recognition of Deferred tax assets/liabilities
Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax
asset is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

vi) Going Concern assumption
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Company
has incuired a net loss of INR 211.74 million during the year ended 31 March 2023. As at 31 March
2023, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by INR 261.07 million. Further, the
Company has contractual cash outflows of INR 466.13 million (excluding future contractual interest
payments) due within 12 months of the balance sheet date.




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

The Company has prepared budgets / cash flow forecasts, which involves judgement and estimation
around the sources of funds to meet the financial obligations and cash flow requirements. Also refer

note 40.
E. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle.

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively.
All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

F. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and repoits directly
to the Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer,

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise siated)

1

s In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the

inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

*» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices),

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 36.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing
costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase

price.

if significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value
only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair
and maintenance expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses

are incurred.
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2)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (up to) the date on which
the asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Asset Category* Useful Life Useful life as per
(Years) Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013
(Years)
Building 15-60 60
Computers and accessories 3-6 3-6
Plant and machinery 5-20 15
Fumniture and fixtures 5-3 8
Vehicles 8 8
Office equipment 5 5

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined
that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets. Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different
from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act 2013,

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment’s are
reviewed by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Transition to Ind AS
The Company had elected to use the fair value of all the items of property, plant and equipment on the
date of transition i.e. 1 April 2015, and designate the same as deemed cost. Fair valuc was determined

by obtaining an external third-party valuation, a level 3 valuation technique.

Other intangible assets

Recognition and measurement
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment loss, if any.
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3)

il

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the
specific asset to which it relates,

Amortisation

Other intangible assets of the Company represent computer software. Computer software are amortized
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life (at present three to ten years). The
amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the
expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization

period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets (except trade receivable without a significant financing component) are initially
recognised at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally its transaction price (that is, the fair value of
the consideration given or received). However, if there is a difference between the transaction price and
the fair value of financial instruments whose fair value is based on a quoted price in an active market
or a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the Company recognizes the
difference as a gain or loss at inception (*day 1 gain or loss®). In all other cases, the entire day 1 gain or
loss is deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the life of the transaction until
the transaction matures or is closed out. A trade receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Amortised cost
- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
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Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

~ the asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FYOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the ohjective of the business model in which a financial asset is

held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is

provided to management. The information considered includes:

~ the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duratton ot any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

~ how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely paymenis of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. “Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
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i,

financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:
contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;

terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse

features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets
at amortised cost

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
at FVOCI under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or foss, Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
at FVOCI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial Hability is
classified as at FVTPL ifit is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership

and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retajns either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred

assets are not derecognized.
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Financial liabifities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or cxpire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

v, Offsenting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Inierest free loans
The Company has obtained interest free loan from its holding company. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such
loans. The difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans have been recognised
as equity component in the books of the Company, The loan component is subsequently measured at
amortised costs and interest expense is recognised using effective interest rate method. On modification
in the terms of such loans wherein they became repayable at the option of the borrower resulting in it
becoming perpetual debt, such loans including acerued interest up to the date of modification have been

treated as other equity.
vi. Modification of financial assets and Habilities

Financial assets;

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows arc substantially diffcrent, then the
coniractual rights to cash flows from the original finencial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

if the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

4) Impairment

A. Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
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amortised cost,

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of

the financial asset have occurred,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

-it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

-the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible defanlt events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months),

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-

looking estimates are analysed.
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5)

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying

amount of the assets.
For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI,

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts

due.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the assei’s (or cash generating wnit’s) fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cutrent market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit) {CGU}.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated, if any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
(or group of CGUs} on a pro rata basis,

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for
which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such
a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories which comprises stock of food and beverages (including liquor), operating supplies and
stock-in-trade are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost of inventories comprises all
costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and
condition. In determining the cost, first in first out ("FIFO") method is used. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs to make the sale.
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6} Government grants and subsidies

7)

8)

9)

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i)
the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii} the grant/subsidy will be

received.

Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme
The grant or subsidy received to compensate the import cost of assets, subject to an export obligation
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in ratio of fulfilment of associated export obligations.

Service Fxports from India scheme (SEIS)

The scheme entitles the Company to receive SEIS licenses basis the annual earnings in foreign currency.
These licenses can be utilised by the Company or sold in the market. The grant is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on an acerual basis at realizable value,

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an owtflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates at each reporting date.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by
the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly atiributable to
acquisition and/or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended in the period during which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than
temporary interruption. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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10) Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-
gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee
services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b} Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan ~ Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employece
state insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution
already paid is less than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date, the deficit payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity
The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such

defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation,

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market
yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to
the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assutnptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income
and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past

service cost.

{c) Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized acerued compensated absences and utilize
it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fail due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.
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11) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the
Company has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the

passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do invoicing,
the same is presented as Unbilled revenue.

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Company is under
an obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract. Contract liabilities are recognized
as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and recreation services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services relating to hotel
operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale of food and beverages which
is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and other services have been
provided as per the contract with the customer.

12) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The “effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross cairying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability,

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest

income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
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13) Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit
ot loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or
loss on a net basis.

14) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to an jtem recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or

simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and hiabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable

profit or loss at the time of the transaction,

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future
taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets ~ unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and arc recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

reporting date.
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The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets and Company intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or such
tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneousiy.

15) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM).

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to
the segments and assess their performance, An operating segment is a component of the Company that
engages in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate fo transactions with any of the Company’s other components.

16) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted  for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti -
dilutive.

17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

18) Measurement of earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax (EBITDA)

The Company has elected to present earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and
tax (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of profit and loss. The Company
measures EBITDA on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the measurement, the
Company does not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense, exceptional items and
tax expense.
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CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55209MH2005PTC155010

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN amowts in Rupees millions, wifess otherwise stated)

5 Non-current financial assets - Others As at Asat
(Unsecimred considered good) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Bank deposits {due to mature after 12 months fromn the reporting datey*# 50.02 1.47
Security deposits 10.45 .42

60.47 10.89
* including interest accrued on fixed deposits INR .50 (31 March 2022 - INR 0.27)
# includes deposits under lien amounting to INR 48.52 (31 March 2022 - INR Nil)
6 Other tax assets (net) Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
23.61 2523

Tax deducted at source

28.61 25.23




CASFPIA Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5209MH2005PTC155010

Mates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al ansounrs in Rupees milfions, unfess otherwise stated)

7 Income tax For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A: The major componenis of income tax expense / {income} are
Recognised in profit or loss
Current 1ax - -
Deferred tax -
Recogpised in Other comprehensive income
Income tax on other comprehensive income . -
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate (fax expense snd the accounting profif multilpied by Company's domestic tax rate)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
e Amount Yo Ameant
Loss before tax (211.51) (342.06)
Tax using the Company's domastic tax rate 2517 {53.24) 25.17 {86.60)
Tax Effect of:
Non recognition of deferred taxes on temporary differences {24.92) 5271 (25.10) 86.37
HNon-deductible differences (0.02) 0.04 (0.07) 0.23
Others 9.23) 049 -
Effective tax rate - - - -
C. Deferred tax assets { liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 649 86 588.48
Loss allowance for trade receivables 246 1.3
Disallowance under seclion 43B of [ncome tax Act, 1961, for accrued interest 2848 28.43
Provision for employee benefits 210 2.08
682,90 520,32
Deferred tax linbilitics )
Property, plant and equipment and ather intangible assets {[66.54) (157.40)
Others (0.73) -
(167.27) {157.40)
515.63 462.92

Net deferred tax asset

Dieferred tax asset recognised*

* The Company has significant unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward business losses as per Income Tax Act, 1961, In view of absence of reasanable certainty of sufficient
future taxable profits, deferred tax assets has been recognised to the extent of deferred tax liabilities only.




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS209KH2005PTC155010

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(it amotinis in Rupees mithons, unless otherwise siated)

D. Mavement in temporary differences

31 March 2023

Particulars Balance as at Deferred tax on Balance as at
1 April 2022 differences generated 31 March 2023
but not recognised
during 2022-23
(A) (B) CHA+B)

Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed business losses and depraciation 588.48 61.28 649,86
Disallowance under section 43B of Income tax Act, 1961, for accrued interest 28.48 - 28.4%
Loss afiowance for trade receivables 1,30 1.16 2.46
Provision for employes benefits 2.06 0.04 2.10
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets {157.40) (9.14} (166.54)
Otibers - {0.73) (0,73)
Total 462,92 52,71 515.63
31 March 2022

Particulars Balance as at Deferred tax on Balance as at

1 April 2021 differences generated 31 March 2022
but not recoguised
during 2021-12
{A) (B) C=(A+B)

Deferred tax assels
Unabsarbed b losses and depreciation 489.75 93.73 538.48
Disallowance under section 43B of Income tax Act, 196], for accrued interest 2848 - 28.48
Laoss allowance for trade receivables 1.16 0.14 1.30
Provision for employee benefits 2.06 - 2,06
Deferred tax liabilitles
Property, plant and squip t and ather intangible assets (144 46) {12.94) (157,40}
Totsl 376.99 85.93 462,92

E. Tax Losses carried forward

Tax losses on which no deferred tax asset was recognised with expiry date are as follows:

Business loss
Business loss
Business [nss
Business loss
Business loss
Business loss
Business logs
Business loss
Unabsorbed depreciation

Business loss
Business loss
Business loss
Business loss
Business loss
Business loss
Business loss
Business loss
Unabsorbed depreciation

As at 31 March 2023

Amount

2242

4231

26347

195.97

[33.98

210,74

mn

107.38

1,367.72

Expiry Period {FY}
2023-24
2024-25
2025-26
2026-27
2027-2%
2028-29
2029-30
2039-31

Never expire

As at 31 March 2022

Amount Expiry Period (FY)

1.34 2022-23

2242 2023-24

42,31 2024-25

263.47 2025-26

196,97 2026-27

133.98 2027-28

21047 2028-29

23787 202%-30

Never expire

1.229.11

I,




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
CIN US5209MH2005FT C155010

Motes to the financial statements for the yesr ended 31 March 2023

(ANl amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

8 Other non-cwrrent assety
(Unsecured,considered goad}

Prepaid expenses
Capital advances
Taxes paid under prolest {Refer note 32)

9  Inveniories
fralued ai the fower of cost and ner realisable vafie)

Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.39 042
3590 35.50
495 4.99
4128 40.91
As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Food and beverages 206 187
2.06 1.87
For cunent assets secured aganst borrowings, refer note 17,

10 Current finamcial assets - Trade receivables As at As at
fUnsecured) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade receivables
-Considered good 7485 2009
-Credit impaired 612 516
Unbilled revenue®
-Considered good 1025 6.38

91.22 3213
Less - Loss allowance {877 (5.16)
81.45 26.97
* Net of advances from customers of MR 10.93 (31 March 2022 - INR 5 43)
a) The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related 10 trade receivables are disclosed in note 26.
b} For receivables secured against borrowings, refer to note 17
c} Reefer Mote 35 for receivables from related parties
Tra vable ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2023
Dutstanding for following periods from date of tr ti
Particulars Unbilled Revenue | Less than 6 months| 6 months - L vear | 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More tham 3 vears Total
(i) Undi d Trade cecervables — idered pood 1025 64.79 7.63 042 0326 1.73 85.10
(ii} Undisputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - | - 211 005 386 6.12
As at 31 March 2022
Ouistanding for following perdods from date of ¢ L
Particulars Unbilled Revenue | Less tham 6 months| & months - 1 year | 1-2 vears 2-3years | Morethan 3 years Total
(i) Unde d Trade receivables — considered pond 6533 1643 054 064 044 1.64 26,97
(it} Undispuled Trade receivables — credit mpaired - - - .54 1 48 3.14 5,16

The Company does not have any disputed trade receivables as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5209MH2005PTCI55010

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

11

12

13

14

Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

- in current accounts 9243 300.97
- in deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)* 1.58 104.75
Cash on hand 0.26 0.36
94.27 406.08
* including interest accrued on fixed deposits amounting to INR 6.01 (31 March 2022 - INR 0.46)
Current financial assets - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Bank deposits {original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months)#* - 23.33
- 23.33
# includes interest accrued on fixed deposits amounting to TNR Nil (31 March 2022 - INR 0.53)
* includes deposits under lien amounting to INR Nil {31 March 2022 - INR 22 80)
Current financial assets - other financial assets As at As at
(Unsecured, considered gooad) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Security deposits 1.06 1.16
Government grant** - 122
Other receivables C.88 2,25
Bank deposits (due to mature within 12 months from the reporting date)i#* - 2.09
1.94 6.72
# includes interest acerued on fixed deposits amounting to INR Nil (31 March 2022 INR 0.33)
* includes deposits under lien amounting to INR Nil {31 March 2022 - INR 1.76)
** Company has written off government grant amounting to TNR Nil (31 March 2022 — INR (.08).
Other ¢urrent assets As at As at
{Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Staff advance 0.36 0.03
Advance to suppliers 1.78 4.12
Balance with statutory authorities 17.99 2516
Other advances * 14.46 2049
Prepaid expenses 11.09 7.59
45.68 57.39

* Refer note 35 for related party balances.




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
CIN D55209MH2005PTCISS010
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amounts in Rupees millions except for share details ond unfess vtherwise stated)

15 Equity share capital

Authorised share capital
Erquity shares of IMR. 10 2ach

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Erquity shares of INR. 10 sach

a) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the begi

Equity Shares
At the begmning of the year
Balsoee at the end of the year

As at Agat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Nurnsber of shares A t Mumber of shares Amount
35,000,000 350.00 35,000,000 350,00
35,000,000 350,00 35,000,000 350.00
18,000,000 130.00 18,000,000 180.00
18,004,008 180,00 18,000,000 150.00
ing and at the end of reporting year
Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Ampunt
18,000,000 180,00 18,000,000 180.00
18,000,000 180,00 18,000,000 130,00

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having the par valus of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The equity shares are entitled to receive

dividend as and when declared

In the event of liquidation of the Comparry, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Comparry, after disribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be
in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

¢) Shares held by holding company

Name of shaveholder

Equity shares

SAMHI Hotels Limited {Holding Company )+

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares
Neme of sharehobder

Equity shares
SAMHI Hotels Limited ('Holding Compamy')*

As At
31 March 2023
Number of thares Amount
18,000,000 18000
Mumber of shares % of holding
18,000,000 100%

*Mr. Ashish Jakhanwala holds | equity share as a nominee shareholder

Ag At
31 March 2022
Number of shares Amount
18,000,000 L80.0
Number of shares % of holding
18,000,000 100%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations recsived from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding represents both

legal and beneficial ownership of shares

e} No shares have been allotted without payment of cash of by way of bonus shares or shares bought back during the pericd of five years immedialely preceding the Balance Sheet dats

1) Details of shares held by promoters

As at 31 March 2023

Na, of shares at :
5.No Promoter the beginning of Change during the  Mo. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change dwring
MNamie & year ead of the year the year
the year
SAMH] Hotels
: %%
I Limited 18,000,000 18,000,000 100% Na change
As at 31 March 2022
Ng, of shares at
S.No Promoter the beginning of Change during the  No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
Name & year end of the year the year
the year
1 SAMH] Holels 18,000,000 . 18,000,000 100% Mo change

Limiled
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CIN U55209MH2005PTC155010

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(ANl amounis in Rupees millions except for share details and unless otherwise stated}

16 Other equity

Capital reserve
Retained eamings
Equity component of interest free loan from holding company (net of tax)

a) Capital Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the yeai
Balance at the end of the year

As at
31 Mareh 2023

As at
31 March 2022

366.63 366.63
(2.574.91) (2,363.17)
2,496.94 2,496.94
285.66 500,40

As at
31 March 2023

36663

As at
31 March 2022

366.63

366.63

366.63

This represents capital reserve on business combination being the difference between purchase consideration and fair value of net assets/liabilities acquired.

b) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Loss for the year

Transferred from other comprehensive income

Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated profits/(losses) of the Company

¢) Other comprehensive income

Balance at the beginning of the year

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability / asset {net of tax)
Transferred to retained earmings

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (asset) comprises actuarial gains and losses.

d) Equity component of interest free loans from Holding Company

Balance at the beginning of the year
Less: Repayment of loan from Holding Company

(2,36317) (2.019.18)
(211.51) (344.06)
0.23) 0.07
(2,574.91) (2,363.17)
0.23) 0.07
0.23 0.07)
2,496.94 2,531.94
- (35.00)
2,496.94 2,496.94

This represents the interest free loans received from SAMHI Hotels Limited, the Holding Company which are repayable at the option of the Company

{considered as perpetual debt)

¥7  Non-current financial lizbilities - Borrowings

Term loans from banks (secured)
Less: Interest accrued on borrowings {refer note 21}
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 19)

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2,636.03 2,785.16
{6.86) {6.33)
(264.54) (215.94)
2,364.63 2,562.89

_,/Q’/“/
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CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
CIN US5209MHZ005PTC155010

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

17a Non-current financial liabilities - Trade payables

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3.38 41.23
3.38 41.23
The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 36,
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2023
Qutstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
ticula
Partieulars Jecnicd [ Vs than 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
Expenses 1 year
MSME - - - - - -
Others - 3.38 - - - 3.38
Total - 3.38 - = - 3.38
As at 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Particul
Actettars Accrued {{1ess than 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
Expenses | 1 year

MSME - - - - - -
Others - 32.51 8.72 - - 41.23
Total - 32.51 3.72 < ~ 41.23

The Company does not have any disputed dues which are payable as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.




CASPIA Hotels Privaie Limited

CIN [)55209MH2005P TCI1S501 0

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN amcunts in Rupees mitlions, snless otherwise sfated)

1%

10

2

22

3

Non cwrrenat Provisions As at Asal

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Pravision for emplayes benefits

Gralvity (refer nale 27) 093 123
Compensated absences (refer nole 27) 3387 0,84
1.86 07

Current financial liabiities - Borrowings As at Asat
{Secrired} 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Owverdrafl facilities from banks 16,82 -

Cumrent matunties of long-term borrowings (refer note 17 ) 264.54 21594
18).36 215,94

Terms of overdraft facilities from banks

The Company has availed bank overdraft facility from HDFC Bank at an inkerest rate of 9.50% pa {31 March 2022 - 8.65%] {1 year MCLR. plus 135bps) compuled on

maonthly basis on the actual amount wtilised, and s repayable on demand
The security for this facility is same as term loan from HDFC Bank mentioned in Note 17

Cuarrent financial labiities - Trade payables Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payables
- total cutstanding duss of micro enlerprises and small enterprises (MSME) 454 137
- total outstanding duss of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 161.20 17.10
16614 11847
a) Refer Mote 38 for Disclasures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)
b) Refer Mote 35 for duss 1o related parlies
¢} The Company’s exposure 10 currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 36
Trade payables Ageng Schedule
As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following pericds from the date of transaction
Particulars Accrued More than 3
Expenises Less tham 1 yesr 1-2 years 2-3 years o Total
MSME - 4.71 Q2] 0.01 LR 494
Qlbers 33.00 63 80 3343 891 21.97 161.20
Total 33.00 65.60 33.64 892 21.98 166,14
As at 31 March 2022
Ouistanding for following periods [rom the date of transaction
Particulars Accrued More than 3
Expenses Lesg than T year 1-2 years 2-3 years - Total
MSME - 124 005 0.08 - 1.37
Others 2703 3712 1756 2264 1275 11710
Total 17.03 3836 17.61 2172 12.75 118.47
The Company does not have any disputed dues which are payable as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
Current linancial liabilities - other Mnancial liabilities As at As at
3 March 2023 H March 2022
Interest acerued on borrowings (refer nate | 7) 686 633
Employee relaled payables 707 530
Payable for capital assets 470 3.00
Security deposils received - 005
18.63 14.68
Other current liabilithes Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance from customers 193 17.69
Statulory dues payable 1050 805
18.43 2574
Current provistons Agat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for employee benefits
Graluity {refer note 27} .61 068
Compensated absences {refer note 27 ) 130 054
1.91 1.22




CASPILA Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS2OMH2005PTCL55010

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{AN amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

24 Revenue from operations

Sale of services

- Rootn revenue

- Food and beverage revenue

- Recreation and other services

For the year ended
31 March 2023

494,02
236.87
18.74

749,63

For the year ended
31 March 2022

28549
161.54
11.31

458.34

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is
over/ services delivered. Advance collection is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied, This includes advances
received from the customer towards rooms / restaurant/ banquets, Revenue is recogmised once the performance obligation is met .. on room stay/ sale of food
and beverage / provision of banquet services. Excess of revenue over invoicing is recorded as unbilled revenue. Revenue recognised in the stat t of profit and

loss is same as the contracted price.

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers 7.93 17.69
8145 26.97

Trade receivablas

Note: Considering the nature of business of the Company, the above contract liabilities are generally materialised as revenue and trade recsivables is converted

into cash within the same operating cycle.

25 Other income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income from financiat assets at amortised cost
- on bank deposits 6.47 0.97
Gain on modification of financial liabilities 855 -
Miscellaneons income 017 (.33
15.1% 1.30
26 Cost of materials consumed For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2022
Consumption of food and beverages
Inventory at the beginning of the year 1.87 1.4%
Add : Purchases during the year 71.79 51.08
[nventory at the end of the year {2.06) {1.87)
30.70

71.60




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55209MH2005PTC155010

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
1A amounis In Rupees millions, unless otherwise stored)

27 Employee benefils expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident fund and other finds (refer 'a' below)
Compensated absences (refer 'b' below)

Gratuity expense (refer 'c’ below)

Siaff welfare expenses

a. Defined Contribution plans

For the year ended
31 March 2023

10573
7.20
1.94
.37

13.30

For the yesr ended
31 March 2022

7903
5.36
0.65
0,42

[1.21

128.54

96.67

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees fowards Provident Fund,
Labour Welfare Fund and Employees' State Insurance, which are defined contribution plans. The company has no obligations other than to make the specified
contributions. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund,
Labour Welfare Fund and Employees' State Insurance for the year aggregated 10 INR 7.20 (31 March 2022 - [NR 5.36) Also refer note 32,

b. Compensated absences

The Principal assumptions used in determining the compensated absences benefit obligation are as given below:

Particulars

Discounting rate
Salary growth rate

c. Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity

For the year ended
31 March 2023
%
704
550

For the year ended
31 March 2022
Yo
4.97
5.50

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary {last

drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

The fallowing tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet

for the said plan;
a) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars
Current service cost

Tntezest cost
Toial exp recognised in the Stat t of profit and loss

b) Remeasurements recognized directly in other comprehensive income

Met actuarial (gain}floss recognized in the year
-l in demographic pti

- changes in financial assumptions

- changes in expenience adjustmenis

Amount recognized in other comprehensive income

¢} Change in present value of benefit obligation

Particulars

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Adctuarial {gain)10ss on obligalions

Benefits paid

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

For the year ended
31 March 2023

027
Q.19

For the year ended
31 March 2022

0.32
0.10

0.37

0,42

For the year ended
31 March 2023
(©.04)
{0.07)
0.34

For the year ended
31 March 2022
(0.03)
(0.02)
(0.02)

0.23

0.07)

For the year ended
31 March 2023
1.91
028
0.10
0.23
{0.92)

For the vear ended
31 March 2022
215
032
0.10
(0.07)
(0.59}

.60

1.91




CASPLA Hoiels Private Limited

CIN U55209MH2005PTC155010

Notes 1o the financial statements (or the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN amounes in Rupees mitfions, wnicss otherwise stated)

d} Amounts recognized in Balance sheet

Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of the defined benefit abligation st the end of the year 1.60 1.91
Fair value of plan assets ar the end of the year - =
Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 1.60 1.91
Mon-current 092 123
Current 061 068
) The Principal assumptlons used in determining the grawity benefit obligation are as given below

As at Asg at
Particalars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

% %

Dhzcounting rale {p.a.) T04 497
Salary growth rate {(p.a } 550 550

The discount rate is generally based npon the markel yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the lizbilities

The salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long lerm basis

As at Agal
Demographic assumptions 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Retirement Ape (years) ] 58
Mortality Table LALM (201 2-2014) 1ALM (2012-2014}
ultimate table ultimate table
Withdrawal Rate % %
Ages
Up to 30 Years 56/63/69 4963168
From 21 to 44 years 56/63/69 49763163
Above 44 years 56/63/6% 49163/68
3 The Company best estimate of sxapense for the next year is MR 0.37 {31 March 2022: [NR G.41)
£) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the rel achuarial ptions, holding other pti t, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amotuts shown below,
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Increase * Increase *
Discount rate {0. 5% movement} (0.01) (0.02)
Future salary growth (0.5% movement) 001 00z

Although the analysis does niot take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions

shown

* Positive amount represents inerease in provision

* Megative amount represents decrease in provision

Sensitivity changes due 10 withdrawal and mortality are not material and hence not disclosed

There was no change in the method and assumplions used in preparing the senstivity analysis from prior years

b) Maturity profile of defined benefit abligatiom

Year Asat Ag at
31 March 2023 31 Mavch 2022

0-1 year 062 0.68
[-2 year 0.4 047
2-3 year 022 028
3-4 year @10 017
4-5 year 005 009
5-6 year 002 005
More than & year 010 017

1.60 1.91

1) The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2023 is 1.31 years {31 March 2022; 1 36 years)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amourts in Rupees miliions, wniess otherwise stated)

28

29

31

Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest expense on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
- Term loans and overdraft * 277.73 278.24
- Others 5.64 -
Bank charges 0.43 013
Other finance costs 232 5.20
286.12 283.57
*Net of interest income on fixed deposits of INR 0.83 (3F March 2022 - [NR 3.17)
Depreciation and amortisation expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 99.13 103.37
Amortisation of other intangible assets 3.18 2.01
102.31 i05.38
Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Repair and maintenance
- Building 12.03 6,28
- Machinery 2065 17.07
- Others 11.92 9.00
Advertisement and business promotion 24,61 16.35
Commission 20.52 14.24
Communication expenses 4.26 342
Consumption of stores and supplies 40.81 2821
Contractual labour 2243 16.19
General administration expenses 503 331
Hotel running expenses 3.83 542
Insurance am 2.87
Legal and professional charges 4820 45.25
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation {net) 11.14 292
Management and incentive fees 29.33 12.71
Government grant written off - 0.08
Payment to auditors* 1.47 147
Power, fuel and water 86.47 61.19
Loss allowance for trade receivables 461 .54
Rates and taxes 19.67 12.24
Rent expenses 0.06 0.06
Training expenses 246 273
Travelling and conveyance expenses 13.72 5.65
Miscellaneous expenses 1.53 0.18
387.76 267.38
*Payment to auditors comprises
As Auditor
Statutory audit 1.32 1.32
Reimbursement of expenses 0.13 0.13
Other services 0.02 0.02
147 L47
Earnings per share (EPS) For the year ¢nded For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Net loss attributable to equity shareholders (21151 {344.06)
Weighted average number of equity shares for caleulation of basic EPS 18,000,000 18,000,000
Weighied average numnber of equity shares for caleulation of diluted EPS 18,000,000 18,000,000
Nominal value of equity share (INR) 1o 10
Basic eamingsf(loss) per share (INR) (11.75) {[9.11}
{11.75)

Diluted eamings#{loss) per share (INR)

= 19:11)



CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5209MH2005PTC155010

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN amonnts in Rupees milfions, unless otherwise stated)

32 Contingent liabilities and commitments
{to the extent not provided for)

Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total demand Amount paid under Total demand Amount paid under
protest protest
Income Tax Act, 1961 2299 4,99 22.99 4.99

(i) The Company had received an assessment order for financial year 2015-16 whereby an addition of INR 21.36 had been made to the total
income of the Company. The addition has been made on account of unexplained sundry creditors and interest on delay in deposit of statutory
dues. The Company had deposited INR 4.50 against total demand of [NR 9.17 and has filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income-
tax (Appeals} against the said addition which is pending for disposal.

(i} The Company had received an assessment order for financial year 2016-17 whereby an addition of INR 9.52 had been made to the total
income of the Company. The addition has been made on account of staff welfare expenses, advertisement and business promotion expenses
and other unexplained expenses which could not be substantiated under Section 69 C of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company had
deposited INR 0.49 against total demand of INR 2.46 and has filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) against the

said addition which is pending for disposal.

(iii) The Company had received an assessment order for financial year 2017-18 whereby an addition of INR 18.39 has been made to the total
income of the company and has raised a demand of INR 11.36, The addition has been made on account of unexplained expenditure under
Section 69C of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The company has filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against the

said addition which is pending for disposal.

(iv) During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has received notice under section 148 of Income Tax Act, 1961 for financial year
2015-16 on grounds of escaped assessment. However, subsequent to year ended 31 March 2023 the Company has received a favourable

order.

(v) In February 2019, Supreme Court of India in its judgment clarified the applicability of allowances that should be considered to measure
obligations under Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952. The Company has been legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on
the application of judgment retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periods. For the period 1
March 2019 to 31 March 2019, the Company has made a provision for provident fund contribution in the books of accounts amounting to

INR 0.34.

33 Operating Segments

The Holding Company's Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODMD, since he is
responsible for all major decisions w.r.t. the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, alliance, merger,
acquisition and expansion of any new facility. CODM has examined the company’s performance from product and geographic perspective
and has identified a single business segment i.e. "Developing and running of hotels", hence no specific disclosures have been made.

A. Information about products and services
Company primarily deals in one business namely "Developing and running of hotels", therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not

applicable.

B. Information about geographical areas
The Company provides services to custormers in India. Further, there are no assets located outside India.

C. Information about major customers (from external customers)
The Company does not derive revenue from one customer which would amount to 10 per cent or more of the entity’s revenue,




CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55209MHA2005PTCIS5010
Motes o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Rupees milfions, unless othenvise tiaied)

34 Lease disclosures

The Company bas taken office premises under cancellable operating Jease apreeinent. The total lease rental recognised as an expense during the year under the
lease agreement amounis to [ME. .06 (31 March 2022 - INE 0.06)

35  Related party disclosures

{a) Name of related parties

Related party and nature of related party relationship where control exists:

Narne of related party

|Nature of relationshiy

Heolding Company

SAMHI Hotels Limited

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place:

Mature of relationship

Name of related party

SAMHL Hotels { Abmedabad) Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Arpon Hotels Private limited

Fellow Subsidiary

SAMHI )V B Hotels Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

|SAMHI Hotels {Gurgaon) Provate Limited

(b} Ret

d party tr

tions during the year:

Particulars

Holding Company

Fellow subsidiaries

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Non-current fi

inl liabilities - Borrowings

Repayment of loan from Holding Company

- 3500

( Directly recopmised in Other Equity)

Reimbursement of expenses {net)

4.53

1.91

SAMH] Hotels {Ahmedabad) Frivare Limited

0.02

0.63

Argon Hotels Private limited
SAMHI Hotels Limited

0.06 081

SAMHI IV Business Hotels Private Limited

175

423

Legal and professional exy

SAMHI Hotels Limited

2226 23.98

In addition to transactions above,

- the Holding Company has provided undertaking on behalf of the Company in respect of term loan obtained from banks (Refer note 7).
- there is a pledge over shares held and owned by the holding company for the borrowings obtained from banks,

{¢) Related party balances as at the year end

Particulars

Helding Company

Fellow subsidiaries

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

tax)

Equity component of loteress free boans (net of|

SAMHI Hotels Limited

2.496.94 2.496.%4

Trade payables (reimbursement of expenses)

SAMHI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited

1.12

| Argon Hotels Povate limited

0.43

SAMHI Hotels Limited

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limired

0.71

S AMHI Hotels {Gurgaon} Private Limited

Trade receivables

SAMHI Hotels Limited

0.07 -

SAMHI Hotels { Ahmedabad) Private Limited

Other current assets {other advances)

S AMHI Hotels Limited

1446 20.4%

The transactions with related parties are made on lenns equivalent to these that prevail in am's length

unsecured and settlement occurs in cash,

o4

ions. Qutstanding bal

at the year-end are

For the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Company has not r any impai
parties. This assessment is undertaken at each reporting period,

of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
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(AN amounts in Rupees milllons, unless otherwise stated)

3¢ Financial instruments - Fair vahees and risk management

A) Financial instruments by category and fair value

The below table

1zes the Judg

made in determining the fair values of the financial insruments that are {a) racopnised and

measured at fzir value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inpuis used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting

standard.
31 March 2023
Level of Hierarchy Fair Value Through | Fair Value Through Amwrtised Cost
Profit and Loss Other Comprehensive
(FVTPL) Income (FVYTOCH
Financial assets
Other non-current financial assets - - 60.47
Trade receivables - - 81.45
Cash and cash equivalents - - 9427
Other bank bal s - :
Other current financial agseis - - 1.94
Total fi ial asseis - - 238.13
Financial liabilities
Non-current bomowings 2 - - 2.364.63
Non-current trade payables - - 3.38
Current borrowinps 2 - - 281.36
Current irade payables - E 166.14
(rher corrent financial ligbilities - - 13,62
Total financial liabilities - - 2,834.14
31 March 2022
Particolars Level of Hierarchy Fair Value Through | Fair Value Through Amortised Cost
Profit and Loss Other Comprehensive
{FVTPL) Income (FYTOCI)
Financial assets
(iher non-current financial assets - - 10.89
Trade receivables - - 26,97
Cash and cash equivalents - - 406,08
COther bank bal - - 23.33
Other curreat fi ial assets - - 6.72
Total financial assets - - 473.99
Financial lisbilities
Non-current borrowings 2 - - 2.562.39
Non-current trade Payables - - 41,23
Corrent borrowings 2 - - 215.94
Curent trade payables - - 118.47)
Orher cucrent financial liabilities - - 14.68
Total Anancial liabilities - - 1.953.21|
The fair value of trade ceceivables, cash and cash equi other bank bal other current financial assets, rade payables, current borrowings and other

current financial liabilities approximate their carmying amounts, due to their short-term nature.

Interest rates on pon-corrent borowings (barrowing from banks) are equivalent to the market rate. Such barrowinps are
are reset af short intervals, Accordingly, the carrying value of such borrowinps approximates fair value

Fair value of bank depasits (included in other non-current financial assets) are equivalent to their carrying amount, as the interest rate on them is equivalent to

market rate.

Fair valuation of other non-current financial assets has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as there is no significant difference b

and fair value.

d at floating raies and rates

carying valus
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B) Measurement of fair values
Fair values are eategocised into different bevels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2; imputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly {i.¢. as prices) oc indireetly (i.e. derived
from prices)

Level 3; inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data {uncbservabla inputs).

There are no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 and Lavel 3 during the year.

) Financial risk management

Risk management framework

The Company's activities expose it 1 4 variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
rigk

The Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer under the directions of the board of directors implements fmancial risk management policies across the
Company. The Companys risk licies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropnale risk Limits and
conirols, to monitor Tisks and adherence o Imuts in order to minimize the financial impact of such risks. The rigk £ policies and systems are
reviewed repularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

i Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 1o the Company if a or party to a financial i t fails 10 meet its contractual obligations. The
carmying t of financial assets rep the mzpd credit risk exp . The Company has credit policies in place and the exposures to thess credit

risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
To cater to the credit risk for balances with banks, only high rated banks are accepled

The Company has given security depogits to Government departments and to vendors for securing services from them and rental deposits for employes
accomodations. The Compzny does nor expect any default from these parties and accordingly the risk of default is negligible or mil.

In respect of credit exposures from trade receivables, the Company has policies in place to ensure ihat saks on credit without collateral are made principally to
travel agents and eorporate companies with an appropriate credit history. Sales to other customers are made in cash or by credit cards.

The Comy blishes an afl ce for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of wrade receivables. The management uses a
simplified approach for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped
according to their credit ch istics, including whether they are an individual or legal entity, their geographical location, industry and existence of previous

financial difficulties, if any.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2012
Opening balance 5.16 4,62
Provision made during the year 4.61 0.54
Chosing balance 9.77 5,16

The impairment provisions for financial assets dlscloaed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expecied loss rates. The company uses
in making these jons and selecting the inputs to the impafrment calculation, based on the Compeny’s past history, existing market

J t

oondltlons as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

i, Liquidicy risk

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its Liabilities when they are due,
under both normal and stressed conditions.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity visk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an apprapriate Tequidity risk management
i ork For the 9 of the company’s short-term, medium tetm and dong-tern funding and liquidity management requirements.
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(a} Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and exclude fiture contractual interest payments,

Contractual cash flows
31 March 2023 Carrying amount Total 0-1 year 2-5 years More than 5
Years

Non - derivative financial lisbilties
Mon-current borrowings 2,3564.63 237245 - 358,46 1,033.14 975 85
Nom-current Trade Payables 338 341 - 341 - -
Current borrowmgs 281.36 281.36 281.36 - - -
Current Trade payables 166.14 L66.14 166.14 - - -
Other current financial Kabilities 18.63 18,63 13.63 - - -

2A34.14 2,841.99 466,13 361.57 1,038.14 975.55

Coniractual cash flows
31 March 2022 Carrying amount Total O-1 year 2-5 years More than 5
years

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Mon-cumrent bomowings 2,562.89 2,57229 - 267.10 1,02823 1,276.96
MNon-current Trade Payables 41.23 4123 - 3206 3.17 -
Current borowings 215.94 21594 215.94 . - =
Trade payables 112.47 118.47 118.47 - - -
Otiher current financial liabilities 14.68 14.68 1463 - - -

2,953.21 2,962.61 345.0% 305,16 1,031.40 1,276.96
Also, refer note 40 for disclosures on Gioing Concem assumptica.
{b) Financing arrangements
The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facifities st the end of the reporting period:

As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Floating rate
Expiring within one year {bank overdraft) 318 20,00
Expiring beyond ane year (term loan from banks) [69.00 -
172,18 20.00

i, Market rish
The Company is exposed to market risk primarily relafing to the risk of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, that will affect the Company's expense or the
value of its holdings of fi tal instr
Currency risk
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is on of payables for P fees and other expenditure in currencies other than the functional currency of the Company.
Exposure to currency risk

The Company's exposure to foreign currency rigk at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2023
Currency Amount in foreign Amount in INR
corrency (in millions)
Trade payables UsD 1.04 8538
31 March 2022
Currency Amount in foreign Amount in INR
currency (in millions)
Trade payables uUsD 1.[0 8321
Sensitivity analysis
A bly possible strengthening {weskening} of the Indian Rupee apainst foreign currency at year end would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in foreign

currency and affected eqult}r and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rales, remain constant znd ignores any impact of

P 1

sales and p
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(Profit} / boss Equity, net of tax
(increase) / decrease
Effect in INR Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Wealkening
31 March 2023
1% movement
usp 0.85 (0.85) 0as (0.85)
0,85 {0.85) 0.85 {0.85)
(Profit) f loss Equity, net of tax
(nerease) ! decrease
Effect in INR Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
31 March 2022
1% movement
usD 0.83 {0.83) 0.83 (0.3%)
0.83 (0.83) 0.83 (0.83)

Interest rate risk

Tmierest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to

the risk of changes in market interest cates rélates primarily to the Company®s borrowings obligations with floating interest rates,

ings. Moreover, the campany’s current borrewings are

The Company evaluates the interest rates in the market on a regular basis to explore the option of refinancing of the b
Jimked 1o floating interest rates, thereby resulting in the adjustments of its borrowing costs in line with the market interest.

Expasure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company's i bearing financial instr i5 a5 follows:
Carrying amwunt
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets - bank deposits 51.60 129.55
51.60 129.55

Variable-rate instruments
Financial liatalities - Term loans from banles 2,636.03 2,785.16
Financial Liabilities - Overdraft facilities from banks 16,82 -

2,652.85 2,785.16
Total 2,704.45 2,914.71

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting
date would not affect profit or loss. Refer note 364 for fair value disclosure.

Cash flow sensitivity lysis for

rate instr

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in inferest rales at the repocting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below
This analysis assumes that all other variables, remain constant,

{Profir) / boss Equity, net of tax
(increase) / decrease

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease
31 March 2023
Financial ligbilities 27.09 (27.09) 27.09 (27.09)
Cash flow senstivity (net} 27.49% (27.09) 2709 (27.09
31 March 2022
Financial Liabilities 2923 (27.23} 27.23 {27.23}

Cash flow senstivity (net)} 2723 (27.23) 27.23 {27.23)
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37 Capital Management

The Comnpany’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and 1o sustain future development of the business,

The Board of di secks to maintain a bal between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital pesition. The Company monitors capital using loan to value {L.TV) method 1o ensure that the loan to value does not increase beyond 65% on any piven reporting
date at a company level,

The Company is not subyject to externally imposed capital requic

As a part of its capital management policy, the Company did not have any continuing defaults in the repay of loans and interegt. There have baen no material loan covenant
defaults and there has been no intimation from the banks for recalling any loan facility. The Copmany has sought and received waiver letiers from all its lenders as at and for the

year ended 31 March 2023,
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38 Disclosures under Micro, Small and Mediom Enterprises Development Act, 2066 (MSMED)

39

40

41

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Dues to mlcro and small enterprises
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small enlerprises as at the end of the year:
Principal 479 1.35
Interest 004 00l
The amounts of the payments made 10 micro and small enterprises beyond the appointed day during each aceounting year. = -
The amount of mierest paid under the act beyond the appoinied day during the year - =
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been patd bur beyond the 011 om
appointed day during the year) bur without adding the interest speacified under MSMED Act, 2006

als 002

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year, and

The amourt of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, untit such date when the imerest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the Act

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the defmition of micro and small enterprises, as defined under Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 has been
made tn the financial staterents based on information received and available with the Company

During the year, SAMH] Hotels Limited (the Holding Company) has allocated sxpenses amounting TNR 22 26 (3 ) March 2022 - INR 23 98) as Comparry’s share of project expenses and other cost
incurmed.

oimg concern

The Company has incurred a net loss of INR. 211,74 during the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022 - INR 343.99) and as of that date, the Company”’s current Liabilibies exceeded its current
assels by [NR 261.07. As on 31 March 2023, the Company has been Jargely funded by loans from banks and there are contractizal cash cutflows of INR 466 13 (excluding future contractual inferest
payments) due within | 2 months of the balance sheet date

In the eurrent year, consequent to reduction in the number of COVID-19 cases and easing of all wavel restrictions, the Company has withessed a strong recovery. Starting from Q1 FY 2023, the
Company has demonstrated improved business performance in terms of Average Room Revenue {ARR) and Occupancy levels, ARR and Oceupancy levels in FY 202223 and Qi FY 202324 have
reached INR. 4,603 & 73% and INR 4,659 & 68% respeciively. The Company has projected a significant increase in its eash flow from aperations during the years ending 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2025. The Company has cash and bank balance of INR 94 27 {excluding restricted bank deposits} and undrawn credil facililies of INR 172,18 as on 31 March 2023 which will assist for meeting ils
short termn Liabilities for next 12 months, However, if a liquidity need werte to arise, the Company belisves it has access to requisite i il and operational support from SAMHI Hotels Limited
{holding compeny), which will enable it to meet its ongoing capital, operating and other liquidity requirements

In view of the above, the management and the Board of Directors believe that the Comparry will be able to meet all its contractual obligations and lisbilities as and when they fail doe in near future and
acgordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis.

Recent Pronouncements issued but not yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments o the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from lime to time. On 31
March 2023, MCA ded the Companies (Indian Accourting Standards} Amend Fules, 2022, applicable from | April 2023, a3 below:

Tod AS 1 - Presentation of Fi ial Stat; ts: This d requires the entilies to disclose their material accounting policiss rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective

date for adoption of this amendment is armual periods beginning on or after 1 Apeil 2023 The C has evaluated the d and the impact of the amendment 15 insignificant in the
Cornpany’s fmancial stab
Ind AS 8- A ing Policies, Changes in A ing Estimates and Errors: This amendment has introduced a definition of *ac i i ' and included d 1o Ind A% & to help

entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date far adoption of this amendment is armual pericds beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The

Lo y has evaluated the d and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes: This amendment has narrowed the scope of the mibal recognilion exemption so that it does not apply 1o ransaclions that give rise to equal and offseiting temporary
differences. The effective dale for adoplion of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after | April, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact an its financial

staternents
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42 Ratio Awalysis and its elemenis

Ratio in times/% Numeralor Denominator 31 March 2023 3 March 2022 Inerease/ decrense %
(a) Current Ratio 0 bmes Current Assets Current Liabilities .46 139 -67%
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio 1n times Total Borrowings Total equity 565 408 38%
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio n tirmes Profit before finance cost,  [nterest Payments + Principal 036 Qg 243%
depreciation, isation R L
and tax
(d) Beturn on Equity Ratic in% Loss for the year Average Total equity -36.81% -39.55% -
() Jnventory tommover ratio in times Cost of goods sold Average [nventory NA NA MA
() Trade Receivables urnover ratio in times Rewenue from operations  Average Trade Receivables 13.33 1904 -27%
() Trade payables tumover ralio nimes Cost of materials consurned Average Trade Payables 279 229 22%
+ Other expenses
(h) Net capital tumover ratio in bimes Revenue from operations  Average Curment assers - (13.08) 2 66 -591%
Average Currend liabilibes
(i) Net proiit ratio n% Loss for Ihe year Revenue from operalions -28.22% ~T5.07% -62%
(§) Returm on Capital employed n ¥ Loss before finance costs  Tangible Net Warth + Tolal 240% -1.75% -237%
and taxes Borrowings
(k) Return on investment in% [nierest (Finance Income)  Investment NA Na NA
Explanations to variance in Ratios:
Current Ratio Lower due to i in current L ings and irade payables and d in cash and bank bal
Debt-Equity Ratio I due 1o reduction in other equity as result of losses
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Ratio has ymproved due to inerease in earnings before finance cosi, depreciation, amortisation and tax
Trade Receivables tumover ratio Decrease in trade receivables tumover ratio is due to increase in credil sales during the vear
Mei capital T ratio D d due 1o decrease in average working capital during the year
Net profit ratio [mproved due to vement in business activity during Lhe year
Return on Capital employed Improved return is due to decrease in loss before intérest and taxes during the current year on of i inb
activity during the year

The Company has nol presented the following ratios due 1o the reasons given below:
(a} [nventory wWwengver ralio; since the value of inventory is insignificant as compared to the total assets
{b) Return on i since the Company invests surplus temporary funds tn short term bank deposits and the income generaled is insignificant fo total umaver

43 Other statatory information
(i) The Company does nol have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending agains! the Company for holding any Benami property

{1} The Company do not have any Iransactions with companies struck off,
(i} The Company does not have amy charpes or satisfaction which is yet 1o be repi d with Reg): of Companies (ROC) beyond the siatulory period

(i%) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto cumency or Yirtual Currency during he financial year.

(v} The Company has not advanced or loaned oc invested funds 10 anry other person(s} or entity(jes), including foreign entities (Lntermediaries) with the und ding thal the Intermediary shall:
(a} directly or indirecity lend or invest in other parsons or entities identified in any manner whatsotver by or on behalf of the I (INumate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantse, security or the like 10 or on behalf of the Ulumate Beneficiaries

(i) The Company haz not received any fund from amy person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Funding Party) with Ihe understanding (whether recorded in wriling or atherwise} that the

Company shalk:
(a} directly or indirecily lend or inves! in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalFof the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any puarantge, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficianies
(vii}) The Company does nol have any such 1om which is not ded in the books of aceounts that has been surendered or disclosed as income during the year in the lax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1951 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Incame Tax Act, 1961

{viii} The Company has not granled any loans or advances in the nalure of Joans to promoters, direciors, KMPs and the relatsd parties (a2 defined under Companies Act, 2013) either severally or
jontly with any other persan that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of rapayment

(ix) The Company has used the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was faken
(%} The Company has nol been declared a willful defaulter by amy bank or other lender (as defined under the Companies Act, 20133, in sccordance with the guidelines on witl ful defauliers
(xi} The Company has complied with number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

{xii) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year

(o) The Company has not revalued ils property, plant and equip or olher i ible asseis or both during the curren! or previous year,
{iv) The Company is not required to submil quarterty relumns oF statements with banks during the current or previous year

44 As per the MCA Notificalion dated August 06, 2022, the Central Govemment has notified the Companies {Accounis) Fourth Amendment Rules, 2022 As per the amended rules, the Company is
required to maintain a backup of the books of account and other selevant books and papers in electronic mode that should be accessible in India st all times. Also, the Company is required 10 creale
backup of accounts on servers physically located in Tndia on a daily basis

The books of account along with other relevant records and papers of the Company is maintained in elecironic mode, across all hotels. These are readily accessible in India at all bmes and currently a
backup is maintained on a cloud based / physical server, Such servers are located in India, with the exception of certain soflwares/ applications, for which the servers are located overseas. The
Company iz in the process of complying with (hese requi P tothe 4
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45 Impairment of assets
Impairment testing for casli-generating nnits

In sccordance with Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets™, the Company had identified individual hotels (consisting of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets) as a separate cash
generating unit {CGU} for the purposs of impal review. M periodically assesses whether thers is an indication that an asset may be impaired using a comparison between carrying value

of aszets in books and the recoverable value

Recoverable amount is value in use of the hotel and is based on discounted cash flow method which was classified as a level 3 fair value in the fair value hierarchy due fo the inclusion of one or more
unobservable inputs. There has been no change in the valuation technique as compared 16 previous years

Based on the results of impairment testing for the hotels, the written down value of certain hotels as at 31 March 2020 had been reduced to recoverable values as mentioned below.

Asset Carrying valoe Recoverable value Tmipairment Inss

Renaissance - Ahmedsbad, $G Highway 1,365 49 1,206.05 15944

Four Points by Sheraton - Yizag, City Center 1,386.31 1,220,75 165.56

Fairfield by Marmiott - Coimbators, Airport 890.56 845,60 44 36
3.64236 327240 36096

Dhuring the current year, based on the impairment analysis carried ot by the no further mpanment loss is required 1o be led in the fi |

The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below.

ASsunions
As at Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Dhscount rate Pre tax / Post Tax 1234% /4 12.15% 1222%711.70%
Average Room Revenue (ARR} growth rate % to 24% %10 25%
Terminal Yalue multiple 14 times 14 times
Cecupancy rate 72%-281% 70% - 81%
Based on the impaimment testing performed, the beli that any bly poszible change in the key assumptions would not cause the recoverable amount to be lowsr than carrying

amount of the CGLJ,

46 The Company has foreign currency payables of INR 18.82 million towards management & license fee and incentives etc. which are outstanding for more than three years as on 31 March 2023, As per
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the applicable rules/regulations, in case of any foreign curréncy dues which are not remitied within a period of three years, spproval from Reserve Bank
of India (RBI) is required. In view of the management, the Company was unable to clear these dues within the time stipulated under Jaw due to fi ial difficalti d by the Hote! Industry
on account of COVID-19. Subsequent to March 2022, the Hotel Industry has wilmessed significant improvement in its cash flows and the Companty has settled sorme of these dues and intends to settle
the balance dues i the near future. The Company is of the view that it will be in a position 1o get the necessary approvals from RBI/ Authorised Dealer (AD) banker, if any, and will not result in
impasition of any penalty which will be material to thess financial statements
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